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ALUR TALUK.

ALUR is one of the four taluks which make up the eastern, or
black cotton-soil, division of the district, the other three being
Acionl, Bellary and Rayadrug. As much as 77 per cent. of its
area 13 covered with ecottontsoil, 16 per cent. being mixed
soils and the remainder red ferruginous land. Round about its
head-quarter station is a cluster of granite rocks forining part of a
disjointed line of hills which crosses it from 1101th-west to south-
east; but except for the variety which these afford it is an almost
dead level plain, draining for the most part into the Hagari.
Statisties upon many points concerning it will be found in the

separate Appendix to this book. [t suffered more severely in the -

1876 famine than any other taluk in the district and its population
in 1901 numbered only a few hundreds more than it did in 1871,
thirty years before. More than half its people speak Telugu but
Canarese i is the vernacular of nearly two-fifths.

The percentage of the area of Alhr which is arable is higher
than in any other taluk and its cotton-soil, which is of the typically
heavy variety, is the best in the district, the average assessment per
acre on its dry land being as high as Re.1-4-0. The incidence
of the land revenue per head of the population is also much higher
than i any other taluk. A bumper crop from its rieh lands brings
in the ryots enough to tide them safely overthat year and the

next, even if in the next the crops fail, but the high proportion of-

it which -consists of cotton-soil, the cultivation of which depends
entirely upon the rainfall, and the almost entire absence of irrigated
land leave no part of it protected against a succession of bad seasons,
while the facts that it has the smallest area of forest land in the
‘district and that (especiallv along its eastern border) water is

extremely scarce—lying at a great depth and being often brackish

—tell severely against its cattle in time of famine. Cholam and
korra are the staple crops, and the area under cotton is the 1argest
in the distriet.

Some account of the few places in it which are of any interest
Is given below :-—
Alar: The head-quarters of the taluk was moved here in

1805 from Gliam, Itis known to the natives as Chinna (little)
Alér to distinguish it from Halaharivi, which they call Pedda
(big) Altir. The place is a Union, has a population of 3,528 and
contains a Sub-registrar, a police-station and & travellers’ bungalow
Otherwise it is entirely uninteresting.
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Chippigiri: Thirteen miles south-east of Altr on the
Guntekal road. Police-station ; population 2,214.

The low fortified hill just north of the village contains traces
of a prehistoric settlement. There was evidently also a considerable
Jain colony here in days gone by and one of the Mackenzie
manuscripts ! says that king Bijjala (apparently the Kalachurya
usurper, A.D. 1156-1167, is meant) built the fort and lived there
with his people the Jains. On the hill is a Jain temple— stifl called
““the basti” by the villagers —which has the pyramidal stone root
typical of structures of the kind and found also in the similar
examples at Kurugédu, Hampi, Kottiru and other places in the
district. The temple also contains several representations of seated

- and standing (nude) figures which are clearly Jain in character, and

immediately north of the entrance to it, under a big boulder, are
three. stones bearing larger images of Jain tirthankaras. The inner
shrines of the two largest temples in the village-——those to Bhogés-
vara and Chenna KésavasvAmi—were also obviously originally

Jain shrines of .the same design which, at a much later date, have

been added to and converted into Hindu temples. One of these

 resembles the Jain temple on the hill in exhibiting, on: the lowest

course of the masonry of the tower over the shrine, the curious
ornamentation, consisting of a row of little inverted cones, which
is to be seen in one of the similar temples at Kurugédu.

 The Bhogésvara and Chenna Késavasvimi temples have both
been enlarged out of all resemblance to their original selves by
being surrounded by a high wall equipped with a gépuram and by
the addition in front of the shrine of imposing mantapams. The
four central pillars in each of these are Jain in style but have been

‘heightened in an inecongruous fashion by placing on top of them a

capital of the same Dravidian style in which the other additions
are built. The two temples face one another and in the square
between them stand. two of the most graceful dhvaja stambhas in
all the district. They are unusually tall, being perhaps 40 feet in
length, taper very gradually upward, are richly carved throughout

~and are set in high pediments which add greatly to their

effect. ‘

In the Bhogésvara temple are two virakals of the usual pattern
and & much damaged CUanarese inscription. In that to Chenna
Késava is an inscription dated 1508 A.D. recording & grant of lands
to it by a local chief. Inthe smaller Venkataramana temple in the

- village an-inscription dated 1528 records a grant by king Krishna

Deva of Vijayanagar.

3 See Taylor's Catadogue of Oriental MSS,, iii, 559,
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Bast of the village and south of the road to Nancharla is a cHAP. xV.

Lrindavanam to Vijaya Réya, a famous Médhva hymnist. ALBR,
Ghliam: A mile from the Hagari, east by south of Altr. T

- Population 1,667. The old village of the same name stands on the

bank of the 1-iver. TUp to 1805, it was the head-quarters of the

taluk. In the great storm of 1851 referred to on page 142 above

the Hagari rose very suddenly and washed away almost all the

houses. A few people returned to the old site, but the maj jority

moved to the present Vﬂlage, which is further off the river.  In the

temple of Lakshmi Dévi in the old village is a-pillar mth an in-

scription which is dated A.D. 1408 and mentions king Déva Réya

of Vljayanagar, but if is said to have been brought from Virupé-

puram, six miles to the north-east. A d/zwja-smmbha contains

another inseription.

In the present Ghliam is the tomb of Gadi ngappa a
Kuruba by caste, who provides an interesting instance of the
manner in whick deities are manufactured.. He died only some 60
years ago and people still living remember him; vet his tomb has
been converted into a regular temple in which worship is performed ;
even Brihmans and Lingdyats pay him due reverence.; children
are named Lingappa, Lingamma and so forth after him ; and the
‘annual festival in his honour is attended, it is said, by as many as
10,000 people. He seems to have gained his posmon in the public
esteem partly by turning ascetic and renouncing the world but
chiefly by fulfilling the desires of those who made vows to him and -
by the success of his prophecies, He is declared, for instance, to
have effected the reinstatement of a dismissed Tahsildar and to have
" foretold the great flood of 1851.

Harivanam: A village of 2,088 1nhab1tants in the north of
the taluk, Imdway between Slruguppa and Adéni. Tt was once .
fortified and one of the gateways of the fortis now oceupied by the
police-station. Just outside this is a- Hanumén temple, in the
enclosure in front of which is avock bear ing an inscription in
Telugu. This is dated A.D. 1560 and speaks of Sriranga Réya
Venkatdri as ruler of the Adéni pargana and records the grant of
‘Harivdnam to BrAhmans as an agrahdram. This Venkatddri was -
doubtless vne of the two blo’chew of Réma Réya, the de facto ruler
at that time of the Vijayanagar.empire. He had rebelled agamst -
Réma Réya about 1550 and seized Adéni, but after a siege of six |
months the place capitulated and he was pardoned ! The inserip-
"tion seems to show.that he continued thereafter to hold charge of

the Adéni country. , ' -

* Briggs’ Ferishia, iii, 897, 1.
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Round about the Hanumén temple are several pieces of religicus
sculpture in a close-grained green stome. The villagers say that
they are remnants of a temple to Sémésvara which has now dis-
appeared. Just south of itis a eirakel, and another stands under a
margosa tree some 50 yards to the west. The former is said to be
in memory of the aucestor of some Kur ubas, and the latter of some
Chetti Banajigas, who still hold inams in Harivinam. Within
the fort, some 50 vards north of the police-station, are two Jain
temples of the same class as those at Chippigiri. Both are now
occupied by Hindua gods.

The village has been stated to be a centre of the blanket-
weaving industry but no weaving is done in it now. Three
families of Kammas make agricultural implements and, to order,
ornamental knives, swords and other hardware thoh has some local
reputation.

Hola.lagondl is a Union eontammg 3,398 inhabitants and
a police-station, but, except that it is a place of some eornmerelal
and agricultural importance, it has little interest.

Neraniki: Eight miles to the north-west of Alar. The

hamlet of this village which the maps call Hosappétidévaragudda
and the natives Dévaragudda or Kottapeta, and which lies close

under the hill, is one of several places in the Bellary district which
are widely believed to bring misfortune upon the heads of any
official above the rank of a menial who ventures to visit them.
Other instances are Mantru in Bellary taluk, Byésigadéri
in Hadagalli, Rdmaghatta and Mattihalli in Harpanahalli, M4lavi
in Kudligi and Vyésdpuram in Rayadrug taluk. The prohibition.
differs in degree in different places. Bometimes, for instance, it is
held only to apply to Tahsildars, or only to halts and not to visits, -
but there can be no doubt that it is often seriously regarded by
native officers. In the case of this Dévaragudda it apparently
covers only visits to the deserted village which stands on the stretch
of level ground part of the way up the hill to the south of it. This

" place has a tank with five or six acres of wet land under it and some

200 acres of dry land (neither of which are now cultiv ated), a

mosque, a mantapam and some small temples and-houses in ruins,
Qn the hill above it is a temple to Mallésvara at which an annual -
festival is held. The feature of the gathering is the proncuncement
of a prophecy regar ding the fortunes of the coming year similar to
that referred to in the aecOHn‘c of the Mailér feast on page 243 below.
The hill on which this temple stands is full of caves, or rather
passages among the boulders of which it is made up, and in the
largest of these is a shapeless protuberance on the rock, variously

declared to represent a tortoise or a fish, to which worghip is paid.
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On another hill behind it are more small temples and a building
said to have been used as a powder-magazine by the poligar of the
place. . a ‘

Yellarti: A village of 1,262 inhabitants nine miles in &
direct line north-west of Alér. Tt is known for the urusin honour
of the Musalman saint Sheikh 84hib which occurs annually at it.
'The saint seems to have made a reputation for himself by granting
people the fulfilment of their wishes, sending them children and so
forth, and when he died his followers ‘erected the existing darga to

him. It possessesa landed inam. Stories of the miracles the saint-

performed arg still current. He is said, for example, to have gone
regularly to Adéni (15 miles distant) five times every day so as to
be there at the hours of prayer. '
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